
Revised 5/6/11 

 
 
VARIANCE REVIEW STANDARDS ZONING ORDINANCE SECTION 15.04 (E) (2) 

 
Dimensional or other non-use variances shall not be granted by the Zoning Board of Appeals 
unless it can be determined that all of the following facts and conditions exist: 
 
a) Exceptional characteristics of property for which the variance is sought make compliance with 

dimensional requirements substantially more difficult than would be the case for the great 
majority of properties in the same zoning district. Characteristics of property which shall be 
considered include exceptional narrowness, shallowness, smallness, irregular shape, 
topography, vegetation and other similar characteristics.  

b) The characteristics which make compliance with dimensional requirements difficult must be 
related to the premises for which the variance is sought, not some other location. 

c) The characteristics which make compliance with the dimensional requirements shall not be of 
a personal nature.  

d) The characteristics which make compliance with dimensional requirements difficult must not 
have been created by the current or a previous owner.  

e) The proposed variance will not be harmful or alter the essential character of the area in which 
the property is located, will not impair an adequate supply of light and air to adjacent property, 
or unreasonably increase the congestion in public streets, or increase the danger of fire or 
endanger the public safety, or unreasonably diminish or impair established property value 
within the surrounding area, or in any other respect impair the public health, safety, comfort, 
morals or welfare of the inhabitants of the City. 



April 2010 
 

ZONING BOARD OF APPEALS 
 
The Board of Zoning Appeals is a group of seven of your neighbors or peers appointed 
by City Council to pass judgment on requests for variances and other matters that are 
brought before them.  A variance is a relaxation of the literal provisions of the Zoning 
Ordinance. Petitioners must indicate a hardship or practical difficulty running with the 
land that would warrant the granting of the variance. 
 

PROCEDURE 
 
The Board will hear the items in the order that they appear on the agenda.  When an 
item is called, the Chairman will verify that the petitioner is present. Then the City 
Administration will summarize the facts of the case.  The petitioner will then be given an 
opportunity to address the Board to explain the justification for the action requested. 
 
After the petitioner makes their presentation, and answers any questions that the Board 
may have, the Chairman will open the Public Hearing.  Any person wishing to speak on 
the request should raise their hand and when recognized by the Chairman, come up to 
the podium.   The speaker should identify themselves with name and address, indicate 
their relationship to the property in question (i.e. next door neighbor, live behind the 
property, etc.), state whether they are in favor of or against the variance request and 
give reasons for their opinion.  Comments must be directed through the Chairman.  
Comments should be kept as brief as possible and closely pertain to the matter under 
consideration.  Only one person will be recognized by the Chairman to speak at one 
time. 
 
At the conclusion of public comments the Chairman will close the Public Hearing.  Once 
the Public Hearing is closed, no other public comment will be taken unless in response 
to a specific question by a member of the Board.  The Board will then make a motion to 
approve, deny, or table (delay action) the request.  In order for the request to pass a 
minimum of four votes for approval are needed.  If the request is not granted, the 
applicant has the right to appeal the Board’s decision to Oakland County Circuit Court. 
 



NOTICE: People with disabilities needing accommodations for effective participation in this meeting should contact the City Clerk by e-
mail at clerk@troymi.gov or by calling (248) 524-3317 at least two working days in advance of the meeting.  An attempt will be 
made to make reasonable accommodations. 

 

 ZONING BOARD OF APPEALS 
 MEETING AGENDA 

     REGULAR MEETING 
 

Allan Kneale, Chair, and Glenn Clark, Vice Chair 
Michael Bartnik, Kenneth Courtney 

William Fisher, David Lambert, Thomas Strat 
Bruce Bloomingdale and Orestis Kaltsounis (Alternates) 

   

October 16, 2012 7:30 P.M. Council Chamber 
   

 
1. ROLL CALL 
 
2. APPROVAL OF MINUTES – September 18, 2012 
 
3. APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
 
4. HEARING OF CASES 
 

A. VARIANCE REQUEST, CARL GIORDANO FOR BOND BILT HOME 
IMPROVEMENT, 3333 PADDINGTON – In order to construct an addition to the 
home, a 5 foot variance from the required 45 foot rear yard setback. 
 
SECTION:  4.06 (C) 
 
 

B. VARIANCE REQUEST, PASTOR SCOTT MORGAN FOR ZION CHRISTIAN 
CHURCH, 3668 LIVERNOIS – In order to conduct an outdoor special event (Fall 
Harvest Festival) on Wednesday, October 31, 2012, a variance from the 
requirement that the hours of operation end no later than 8:00 pm.  Applicant 
requests the event end at 9:00 pm. 
 
SECTION:  7.13 I (3) 
 
 

C. VARIANCE REQUEST, SILVANA AND ZORAN INIC, 6285 ROCHESTER – In 
order to construct an addition to the house, a 15.84 foot variance to the required 
40 foot front yard setback. 
 
SECTION:  4.06 (C) 
 

500 W. Big Beaver 
Troy, MI  48084 
(248) 524-3364 
www.troymi.gov 

planning@troymi.gov 



Zoning Board of Appeals Meeting Agenda  Page 2 
October 16, 2012 
 
 

NOTICE: People with disabilities needing accommodations for effective participation in this meeting should contact the City Clerk by e-
mail at clerk@troymi.gov or by calling (248) 524-3317 at least two working days in advance of the meeting.  An attempt will be 
made to make reasonable accommodations. 

 

 

D. VARIANCE REQUEST, JIM BARDY FOR CONTINENTAL SERVICES, 700 
STEPHENSON HWY – A variance to place/construct the following improvements 
in the front yard:  a trash container, a loading area, and a maneuvering area.  
The Zoning Ordinance does not allow these items in the front yard. 
 
SECTIONS:  4.18 (D) (2) and 13.03 (B) (3) 
 
 

E. VARIANCE REQUEST, GARY ABITHEIRA, 1024 ARTHUR – In order to 
construct a duplex, an 80 square foot variance to the required 10,000 square foot 
minimum lot area.   
 
SECTION:  4.07 (C) 
 
 

F. VARIANCE REQUEST, GARY ABITHEIRA, VACANT LOT NEXT TO AND 
WEST OF 85 CLOVERIDGE – In order to build a new house, a variance from the 
requirement that at least one side yard setback be at least 10 feet, and the total 
of two side yard setbacks be at least 20 feet.  The proposed side yard setbacks 
are 9.5 feet and 6 feet. 
 
SECTION:  4.07 (C) 
 
 

G. VARIANCE REQUEST, JOE GUTOWSKI FOR ND INDUSTRIES, 1893 
BARRETT – In order to construct a building addition, a 10 foot variance from the 
required 20 foot rear yard setback. 
 
SECTION:  4.15 (C) 
 

5. COMMUNICATIONS 
 
6. MISCELLANEOUS BUSINESS 
 
7. PUBLIC COMMENT 
 
8. ADJOURNMENT 



ZONING BOARD OF APPEALS MEETING   draft  SEPTEMBER 18, 2012 

1 

On September 18 2012, at 7:30 p.m., in the Council Chambers of Troy City Hall, Chair Kneale 
called the Zoning Board of Appeals meeting to order. 
 
1. ROLL CALL 

 
Present: 
Michael Bartnik 
Glenn Clark 
Kenneth Courtney 
William Fisher 
David Lambert 
Allen Kneale 
Thomas Strat 
 
Also Present: 
Bruce Bloomingdale, Alternate 
Orestis Kaltsounis, Alternate  
Paul Evans, Zoning and Compliance Specialist 
Allan Motzny, Assistant City Attorney 
 
 

2. APPROVAL OF MINUTES – July 17, 2012 
 

RESOLVED, to approve the July 17, 2012 meeting minutes. 
 
Moved by Clark 
Seconded by Strat 
 
Yes: All 
 
MOTION PASSED 
 

3. APPROVAL OF AGENDA – No changes 
 
4. HEARING OF CASES 

 
A. VARIANCE REQUEST, MAGED MICHAIL FOR MNAD PROPERTY LLC, 3424 

ROCHESTER – In order to construct additions to the existing building, 1) a 6 foot 
variance to the required 10 foot front yard setback and 2) a 65 foot variance to the 
required 75 foot rear yard setback. 

 
Moved by Bartnik 
Seconded by Lambert 
 
RESOLVED, to grant the variance. 



ZONING BOARD OF APPEALS MEETING   draft  SEPTEMBER 18, 2012 

2 

Yes: Courtney, Fisher, Kneale, Lambert, Strat, Bartnik 
No: Clark 
 
MOTION PASSED 
 

B. VARIANCE REQUEST, MARK FLEMING, 3820 VICTORIA COURT – In order 
to build a new house, 1) a 17 foot variance to the required 30 foot front yard 
setback and 2) a 27 foot variance to the required 40 foot rear yard setback. 
 
Moved by Bartnik 
Seconded by Strat 
 
RESOLVED, to grant the variance. 
 
Yes: All 
 
MOTION PASSED 

 
5. COMMUNICATIONS – None 
 
6. MISCELLANEOUS BUSINESS – The Board discussed hand voting procedures but took 

no action.   
 
7. PUBLIC COMMENT – None 
 
8. ADJOURNMENT – The Zoning Board of Appeals meeting ADJOURNED at 9:13 p.m. 

 
 
 

 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
 
 
      _____ 
Allen Kneale, Chair 
 
 
 
 
      _____ 
Paul Evans, Zoning and Compliance Specialist 
 
 
G:\BZA\Minutes\2012\Draft\2012 09 18 ZBA Minutes Draft.doc 
 



4. HEARING OF CASES 
 

A. VARIANCE REQUEST, CARL GIORDANO FOR BOND BILT HOME 
IMPROVEMENT, 3333 PADDINGTON – In order to construct an addition to 
the home, a 5 foot variance from the required 45 foot rear yard setback. 
 
SECTION:  4.06 (C) 

 





















4. HEARING OF CASES 
 

B. VARIANCE REQUEST, PASTOR SCOTT MORGAN FOR ZION 
CHRISTIAN CHURCH, 3668 LIVERNOIS – In order to conduct an outdoor 
special event (Fall Harvest Festival) on Wednesday, October 31, 2012, a 
variance from the requirement that the hours of operation end no later than 
8:00 pm.  Applicant requests the event end at 9:00 pm. 
 
SECTION:  7.13 I (3) 

 























ZONING BOARD OF APPEALS MEETING    OCTOBER 18, 2011 

1 
 

The Zoning Board of Appeals meeting was called to order by Chair Lambert at 7:30 p.m. on 
October 18, 2011, in the Council Chamber of the Troy City Hall. 
 
1. ROLL CALL 

 
Present: 
Michael Bartnik 
Kenneth Courtney  
William Fisher 
Allen Kneale 
David Lambert 
Thomas Strat 
 
Absent 
Glenn Clark 
 
Also Present: 
Paul Evans, Zoning and Compliance Specialist 
Susan Lancaster, Assistant City Attorney 
 
 

2. APPROVAL OF MINUTES – September 20, 2011 
 
Moved by Courtney 
Seconded by Bartnik 
 
RESOLVED, to approve the September 20, 2011 meeting minutes. 
 
Yes: All present 
Absent: Clark 
 
MOTION PASSED 
 
 

3. APPROVAL OF AGENDA  – No changes 
 
 
4. HEARING OF CASES 
 

A. VARIANCE REQUEST, PASTOR SCOTT MORGAN, ZION CHRISTIAN 
CHURCH, 3668 LIVERNOIS – In order to conduct an outdoor special event (Fall 
Harvest Festival) on Monday, October 31, 2011, a variance from the requirement 
that hours of operation end no later than 8:00 p.m.  Applicant requests the event 
end at 9:00 p.m. 
 
Moved by Courtney 
Seconded by Fisher 
 
RESOLVED to grant the variance as requested. 



ZONING BOARD OF APPEALS MEETING    OCTOBER 18, 2011 

2 
 

Yes: All present 
Absent: Clark 
 
MOTION PASSED 
 

 
5. COMMUNICATIONS – Chairman Lambert confirmed Board member's receipt of the 

most recent edition of the Michigan Association of Planning magazine.  Chair Lambert 
advised the Board that Member Kneale and himself were reappointed to the Board for 3 
year terms.   

 
6. PUBLIC COMMENT – No public present. 
 
7. MISCELLANEOUS BUSINESS – The Board requested information from the City 

Attorney's Office and Staff concerning the acceptability of the content of their written 
meeting minutes.  Board member Neale asked if staff could examine the possiblity of 
indexing the online videos of the Board meetings to make it easier for users to get to 
specific meeting items. 

 
8. ADJOURNMENT – The Zoning Board of Appeals meeting ADJOURNED at 9:00 p.m. 

 
 
 

 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
 
 
      _____ 
David Lambert, Chair 
 
 
 
 
      _____ 
Paul Evans, Zoning and Compliance Specialist 
 
 
G:\BZA\Minutes\2011\Final\2011 10 18 ZBA Minutes_Final.doc 
 
 



4. HEARING OF CASES 
 

C. VARIANCE REQUEST, SILVANA AND ZORAN INIC, 6285 ROCHESTER 
– In order to construct an addition to the house, a 15.84 foot variance to the 
required 40 foot front yard setback. 
 
SECTION:  4.06 (C) 
 

 









































4. HEARING OF CASES 
 

D. VARIANCE REQUEST, JIM BARDY FOR CONTINENTAL SERVICES, 
700 STEPHENSON HWY – A variance to place/construct the following 
improvements in the front yard:  a trash container, a loading area, and a 
maneuvering area.  The Zoning Ordinance does not allow these items in 
the front yard. 
 
SECTIONS:  4.18 (D) (2) and 13.03 (B) (3) 

 















ROBBINS EXECUTIVE PARK WEST ASSOCIATION

CONTINENTAL
SERVICES

700 STEPHENSON TROY, MI ZONING APPEAL OCTOBER ‘12



SITE EXISTING

ZONED: RC RESEARCH CENTER

02 CONTINENTAL
700 STEPHENSON OCTOBER 2012

1 2



LOBBY/DINING
KITCHEN
RESEARCH
LOADING
WASTE RECEPTACLE
RESTROOMS
GUEST KITCHEN/DINING
FLEX SPACE - CORPORATE 
ADMINISTRATION/SEATING
CULINARY OFFICES

1
2
3
4
5
6
7
8

9

3,000 SF
9,500 SF
1,000 SF
1,500 SF

500 SF
1,000 SF

  1,300 SF
9,600 SF

3,200 SF

1

5

6

24

3

7 8

2,200 SF 1,000 SF

620 SF

EASEMENT

ST
EP

H
EN

SO
N

 H
W

Y.

FR
O

N
T 

YA
R

D
 S

ET
B

A
C

K

TRUCK

PROPOSED OUTDOOR INGRADE PATIO

PROPOSED ENTRY AND APPROACH

BRICK SCREEN REPLACED 
WITH LANDSCAPING SCREEN

2,770 SF
proposed 
increase in 
paved site

proposed 
increase in 
greenscape

4,000 SF

9

800 SF 980 SF

TRUCK

600 SF

R
.O

.W
.

ROBBINS EXECUTIVE PARK DRIVE

1/32”=1’-0”

S. 88 47’00”E               305.00’

S.
 0

1 
13

’0
0”

W
   

   
   

   
   

30
5.

00
’

N. 88 47’00”W              447.28’

N
. 0

1 
13

’0
0”

E 
   

   
   

   
  3

05
.0

0’

570 SF

PROPOSED LAND-
SCAPING SCREEN

PROPOSED LANDSCAPING 

PROPOSED LANDSCAPING

SELF CONTAINED WASTE 
RECEPTACLE WITH BRICK 
SCREEN

SITE PROPOSED AND APPROVED JANUARY 2012

previous design

03 CONTINENTAL
700 STEPHENSON OCTOBER 2012

1 2



LOBBY
KITCHEN
RESEARCH
LOADING
WASTE RECEPTACLE
RESTROOMS
GUEST KITCHEN/DINING
FLEX SPACE - CORPORATE 
ADMINISTRATION/SEATING
CULINARY OFFICES

1
2
3
4
5
6
7
8

9

1,630 SF
12,800 SF

1,000 SF
860 SF
500 SF
600 SF

  1,870 SF
4,300 SF

6,500 SF

1

5

6
2

4

3
7

8

2,150 SF

530 SF

1,775 SF

EASEMENT

ST
EP

H
EN

SO
N

 H
W

Y.

FR
O

N
T 

YA
R

D
 S

ET
B

A
C

K
TRUCK

PROPOSED OUTDOOR INGRADE PATIO

PROPOSED ENTRY AND APPROACH

BRICK SCREEN REPLACED 
WITH LANDSCAPING SCREEN

3,250 SF
proposed 
increase in 
paved site

proposed 
increase in 
greenscape

3,690SF

9

585 SF

TRUCK

400 SF

R
.O

.W
.

ROBBINS EXECUTIVE PARK DRIVE

1/32”=1’-0”

S. 88 47’00”E               305.00’

S.
 0

1 
13

’0
0”

W
   

   
   

   
   

30
5.

00
’

N. 88 47’00”W              447.28’

N
. 0

1 
13

’0
0”

E 
   

   
   

   
  3

05
.0

0’

570 SF

PROPOSED LAND-
SCAPING SCREEN

PROPOSED LANDSCAPING 

PROPOSED LANDSCAPING

SELF CONTAINED WASTE 
RECEPTACLE WITH BRICK 
SCREEN

530 SF

400 SF

previous design

SITE PROPOSED AND APPROVED MARCH 201204 CONTINENTAL
700 STEPHENSON OCTOBER 2012

1 2



PROPOSED LAND-
SCAPING SCREEN

SCREEN REPLACED
 WITH LANDSCAPING

R
.O

.W
.

30 FEET

ROBBINS EXECUTIVE PARK DRIVE

1/32”=1’-0”

N
. 0

1 
13

’0
0”

E 
   

   
   

   
  3

05
.0

0’

TOTAL AREA OF FRONT YARD: WITHIN R.O.W. (NOT INCLUDING ROBBINS EXEC DRIVE):  35,210 SQFT.

EXISTING HARDSCAPE: 16,800 SQFT.

ADDITIONAL HARDSCAPE: 1,413 SQFT.

HARDSCAPE CONVERTED TO GREENSCAPE: 2,705 SQFT.

PROPOSED TOTAL HARDSCAPE IN FRONT YARD:  16,438 SQFT.

WASTE RECEPTACLE BRICK SCREEN (LWH): 28’X12’X8’

10 FEET

15
0 

FE
ET

2,680 SF
proposed 
increase in 
paved site

proposed 
increase in 
greenscape

2,705 SF

ST
EP

H
EN

SO
N

 H
W

Y.

2,150 SF

530 SF

PROPOSED LANDSCAPING 

SELF CONTAINED WASTE 
RECEPTACLE WITH BRICK 
SCREEN

530 SF

400 SF

1,775 SF

FR
O

N
T 

YA
R

D
 S

ET
B

A
C

K
TRUCK TRUCK

previous design

SITE (FRONT YARD) PROPOSED AND APPROVED MARCH 201205 CONTINENTAL
700 STEPHENSON OCTOBER 2012

1 2



LOBBY
KITCHEN
RESEARCH
LOADING
WASTE RECEPTACLE
RESTROOMS
GUEST KITCHEN/DINING
FLEX SPACE - CORPORATE 
ADMINISTRATION/SEATING
CULINARY OFFICES

1
2
3
4
5
6
7
8

9

1,630 SF
12,800 SF

1,000 SF
860 SF
500 SF
600 SF

  1,870 SF
4,300 SF

6,500 SF

1

5

6
2

4

3
7

8

2,150 SF

750 SF

1,775 SF

EASEMENT

ST
EP

H
EN

SO
N

 H
W

Y.

FR
O

N
T 

YA
R

D
 S

ET
B

A
C

K

TRUCK

PROPOSED OUTDOOR INGRADE PATIO

PROPOSED ENTRY AND APPROACH

BRICK SCREEN REPLACED 
WITH LANDSCAPING SCREEN

1,320 SF
proposed 
increase in 
paved site

proposed 
increase in 
greenscape

2,760 SF

9

585 SF

TRUCK

400 SF

R
.O

.W
.

ROBBINS EXECUTIVE PARK DRIVE

1/32”=1’-0”

S. 88 47’00”E               305.00’

S.
 0

1 
13

’0
0”

W
   

   
   

   
   

30
5.

00
’

N. 88 47’00”W              447.28’

N
. 0

1 
13

’0
0”

E 
   

   
   

   
  3

05
.0

0’

570 SF

PROPOSED 
LANDSCAPING SCREEN

PROPOSED LANDSCAPING 

PROPOSED LANDSCAPING

SELF CONTAINED WASTE 
RECEPTACLE WITH BRICK 
SCREEN

663 SF 400 SF

SITE PROPOSED06 CONTINENTAL
700 STEPHENSON OCTOBER 2012

1 2



LOBBY
KITCHEN
RESEARCH
LOADING
WASTE RECEPTACLE
RESTROOMS
GUEST KITCHEN/DINING
FLEX SPACE - CORPORATE 
ADMINISTRATION/SEATING
CULINARY OFFICES

1
2
3
4
5
6
7
8

9

1,630 SF
12,800 SF

1,000 SF
860 SF
500 SF
600 SF

  1,870 SF
4,300 SF

6,500 SF

1

5

6
2

4

3
7

8

2,150 SF

750 SF

1,775 SF

EASEMENT

ST
EP

H
EN

SO
N

 H
W

Y.

FR
O

N
T 

YA
R

D
 S

ET
B

A
C

K

TRUCK

PROPOSED OUTDOOR INGRADE PATIO

PROPOSED ENTRY AND APPROACH

BRICK SCREEN REPLACED 
WITH LANDSCAPING SCREEN

1,413 SF
proposed 
increase in 
paved site

proposed 
increase in 
greenscape

1,775 SF

9

585 SF

TRUCK

400 SF

R
.O

.W
.

1/32”=1’-0”

S.
 0

1 
13

’0
0”

W
   

   
   

   
   

30
5.

00
’

N. 88 47’00”W              447.28’

N
. 0

1 
13

’0
0”

E 
   

   
   

   
  3

05
.0

0’

570 SF

PROPOSED 
LANDSCAPING SCREEN

PROPOSED LANDSCAPING 

PROPOSED LANDSCAPING

SELF CONTAINED WASTE 
RECEPTACLE WITH BRICK 
SCREEN

663 SF

30 FEET

10 FEET

15
0 

FE
ET

TOTAL AREA OF FRONT YARD: WITHIN R.O.W. (NOT INCLUDING ROBBINS EXEC DRIVE):  35,210 SQFT.

EXISTING HARDSCAPE: 16,800 SQFT.

ADDITIONAL HARDSCAPE: 2,680 SQFT.

HARDSCAPE CONVERTED TO GREENSCAPE: 1,775 SQFT.

PROPOSED TOTAL HARDSCAPE IN FRONT YARD:  16,775 SQFT.

WASTE RECEPTACLE BRICK SCREEN (LWH): 28’X12’X8’

SITE (FRONT YARD) PROPOSED07 CONTINENTAL
700 STEPHENSON OCTOBER 2012

1 2



SUPPLY TRUCKS 

TRAILER AND CAB LENGTH: 45’ (60’ SHOWN)
TOTAL TIME ON SITE: 1 TO 3 HOURS PER WEEK 
4-6 DELIVERIES PER WEEK | 20 MINUTES PER DELIVERY

CONTINENTAL DELIVERY TRUCKS

TRUCK LENGTH: 25’
TOTAL TIME ON SITE: TWO TRUCKS STORED ON SITE

TRUCKS 08 CONTINENTAL
700 STEPHENSON OCTOBER 2012

1 2



EXTERIOR EXISTING

EXITING SOUTH ENTRY

09 CONTINENTAL
700 STEPHENSON OCTOBER 2012

1 2



ENTRY AT SOUTH TO BE RENOVATED

EXTERIOR PROPOSED ENTRY CONCEPT010 CONTINENTAL
700 STEPHENSON OCTOBER 2012

1 2







ZONING BOARD OF APPEALS MEETING  final  MARCH 20, 2012 

2 

4. HEARING OF CASES 
 
A. VARIANCE REQUEST, JIM BARDY OF CONTINENTAL SERVICES, 700 

STEPHENSON HIGHWAY – A variance to place/construct the following 
improvements in the front yard:  a trash container, a loading area, and a 
maneuvering lane.  The Zoning Ordinance does not allow these items in the front 
yard.  
 
Moved by Courtney 
Seconded by Bartnik 
 
RESOLVED to grant the variance as requested with the following conditions:  
 
• That the existing berm be extended north and west as depicted on the 

attached drawing. 
• That the new berm height and massing match that of the existing berm. 
• That the new berm be undulating. 
• That the new berm not be required where it will interfere with existing 

screening trees. 
• That additional screening vegetation be installed in the front yard and on the 

berm. 
• That the aforementioned vegetation species, height, and placement effectively 

screen the view of the trucks located in the front yard from Stephenson 
Highway. 

• That the vegetation provides year round screening.   
• That the greenscape created would exceed the amount lost. 

  
         MOTION PASSED 
 
 
 



ZONING BOARD OF APPEALS MEETING  final  MARCH 20, 2012 

3 



4. HEARING OF CASES 
 

E. VARIANCE REQUEST, GARY ABITHEIRA, 1024 ARTHUR – In order to 
construct a duplex, an 80 square foot variance to the required 10,000 
square foot minimum lot area.   
 
SECTION:  4.07 (C) 

 

















4. HEARING OF CASES 
 

F. VARIANCE REQUEST, GARY ABITHEIRA, VACANT LOT NEXT TO AND 
WEST OF 85 CLOVERIDGE – In order to build a new house, a variance 
from the requirement that at least one side yard setback be at least 10 feet, 
and the total of two side yard setbacks be at least 20 feet.  The proposed 
side yard setbacks are 9.5 feet and 6 feet. 
 
SECTION:  4.07 (C) 
 

 



















4. HEARING OF CASES 
 

G. VARIANCE REQUEST, JOE GUTOWSKI FOR ND INDUSTRIES, 1893 
BARRETT – In order to construct a building addition, a 10 foot variance from the 
required 20 foot rear yard setback. 
 
SECTION:  4.15 (C) 









Revised August 16, 2012 

 
ZONING BOARD OF APPEALS APPLICATION 

 
 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 

 
THE ZONING BOARD OF APPEALS MEETS THE THIRD TUESDAY OF EACH MONTH AT 7:30 
P.M. AT CITY HALL.  PLEASE FILE A COMPLETE APPLICATION AND FEE, AT LEAST 27 DAYS 
BEFORE THE MEETING DATE.   
 
 
 
1. ADDRESS OF THE SUBJECT PROPERTY:           
 
 
2. PROPERTY TAX IDENTIFICATION NUMBER(S):           

 
 
3. ZONING ORDINANCE SECTIONS RELATED TO THE REQUEST:          

 
 
4. REASONS FOR REQUEST:  On a separate sheet, please describe the reasons justifying the requested action.  See 

Submittal Checklist 
 

5. HAVE THERE BEEN ANY PREVIOUS APPEALS INVOLVING THIS PROPERTY?   If yes, provide date(s) and  
 
 particulars:                

 
 

6. APPLICANT: 
 
 NAME               

 COMPANY              

 ADDRESS               

 CITY         STATE      ZIP    

 PHONE               

 E-MAIL               

AFFILIATION TO THE PROPERTY OWNER:            

 
 FEE $150.00 CITY OF TROY PLANNING DEPARTMENT 

500 W. BIG BEAVER ROAD 
TROY, MICHIGAN  48084  
PHONE:  248- 524-3364 
E-MAIL:  evanspm@troymi.gov  
http://www.troymi.gov/CodeEnforcement/#  

1893 Barrett Drive

88-20-28-303-024

4.15(C)

No

Joe Gutowski

ND Industries, Inc.

1893 Barrett Drive

Troy Michigan 48084

248-765-7648

jgutowski@ndindustries.com

Director of Projects





ATTACHMENT TO ZONING BOARD OF APPEALS APPLICATION 
APPLICANT’S RESPONSE TO VARIANCE REVIEW STANDARDS 

 
City:     City of Troy  
Applicant:    ND Industries, Inc. 
Tax Parcel No.:   88-20-28-303-024 
Property:  1893 Barrett Drive 
Zoning:  IB Zoning District formerly M-1 Zoning District 
 
 
VARIANCE REQUEST 
 

Variance from Section 4.15(C) of the City of Troy Zoning Ordinance to reduce rear yard 
setback from 20 feet to 10.36 feet (variance of 9.40 feet) to allow for the construction of a 10 
foot x 17 foot fire suppression room that will contain Applicant’s fire suppression equipment 
outside of the constructed chemical storage building.   
 
BACKGROUND/ HISTORY OF PROJECT 
 

Applicant has owned and operated its advanced fastening and sealing technologies 
business on the Property for over 55 years.  Approximately 7 years ago, Applicant and the City 
of Troy Fire Department developed an action plan pursuant to which Applicant agreed to 
modernize its chemical blending and storage processes. As part of this plan, the City of Troy Fire 
Department requested that Applicant store its flammable chemicals in a separate building in the 
interest of the safety of Applicant’s employees and the public.      

 
In August of 2011, Applicant submitted its final Site Plan for the construction of a 5,400 

square foot addition (“Chemical Storage Building”) to the existing one story warehouse 
building located on the Property for the sole purpose of storing Applicant’s flammable chemicals 
in a separate, safe and modernized building equipped with a state of the art foam fire suppression 
system. (See attached Site Plan, Mechanical and Electrical Plans and Building Permits 
dated 11-18-2011, and 1-19-2012).  The original Site Plan did not detail the fire suppression 
system in the Chemical Storage Building and the original approved drawings dated November 
17, 2011 were stamped “Provide fire suppression as required– submit fire suppression shop 
drawings– permit required.” During subsequent discussions with FM Global and the City of Troy 
Fire Department it was determined that the fire suppression equipment must be housed in a 
separate fire suppression room outside of the Chemical Storage Building. As a result, on May 16, 
2012, Applicant submitted its fire suppression plans to the City of Troy Fire Department for 
construction with the fire suppression equipment in the southwest corner of the Property and 
outside of the Chemical Storage Building.  In late July of 2012, the City of Troy Fire Department 
verbally approved Application’s fire suppression plans, however, the City of Troy Fire 
Department subsequently advised Applicant that it had lost Applicant’s submittal package and 
requested that Applicant resubmit its plans for formal approval. On August 21, 2012, the City of 
Troy Fire Department and Building Department approved Applicant’s fire suppression system 
plans and issued a building permit for the construction of Applicant’s fire suppression system.  



 2 

(See attached Fire Suppression Plans approved on 8-22-12 and Letter of Lincoln Fire 
Protection confirming above facts). 

 
 Subsequent to issuance of the building permit, Applicant’s contractors and the City’s 
engineers conducted an on-site visit at which the City’s engineers approved the work associated 
with the construction of the 10 foot x 17 foot foundation/addition (“Fire Suppression Room”) 
located within the 20 foot rear yard setback area located in the southwest corner of the Property 
for purposes of constructing and locating the fire suppression equipment outside of the Chemical 
Storage Building.  In addition, the City’s engineers approved Applicant’s installation of the 
water main extension and new fire hydrant which will connect its fire suppression system to the 
existing water main system located on the adjacent property to the west, being 1100 West Maple 
(“West Property”) owned by JBD Troy LLC.  
 

On September 17, 2012, and in reliance upon the City’s prior verbal approval and 
issuance of the permit, Applicant’s contractor completed the construction of the 
footings/foundation to the Fire Suppression Room and the City inspected and approved this work 
on the same day. (See attached photograph of foundation to Fire Suppression Room along 
with City’s approval affixed to Chemical Storage Building).  Notwithstanding the City’s prior 
verbal approval and its subsequent inspection and written approval of Applicant’s plans and the 
construction of the footings/foundation to the Fire Suppression Room on September 17, 2012, 
the City’s Building Department on the same day informed Applicant that the Fire Suppression 
Room was found to be non-compliant due to (i) it not satisfying the City’s 20 foot rear yard 
setback requirement; and (ii) it being located within the water main easement area to be granted 
on the Property.   
 

In connection with the construction of the Chemical Storage Building, Applicant, at its 
own cost, had the storm sewer system located in the northwest corner of the Property 
reconstructed and connected to the retention/drain system located on the property to the north, 
being 1903 Barrett (“North Property”) owned by Electrical Research Corp and leased by RAM 
Meter Inc. The reconstruction of this retention/drain system was the obligation of the City and 
had been a health and safety issue for a long time. In addition to resolving this matter for the 
benefit of the City and owner of the North Property, Applicant has agreed to pay the costs to 
relocate the fire hydrant located on the West Property to the southwest corner of the Property.  
As part of this work, the existing fire hydrant and bollards located in the driveway area of the 
West Property would be removed. As the City is aware, the construction of the fire hydrant and 
bollards was approved a long time ago in order to allow the tenant of the West Property to 
operate its chemical business that required the fire hydrant to be constructed within a minimum 
distance from the chemical tank/cage constructed on the West Property. Special accommodations 
were made for the operation of that chemical business.  The chemical tank has been removed and 
there is no longer the need for the fire hydrant and bollards, however, the City and owner of the 
West Property have not removed the same due to the costs of completing such improvements.  
The City and owner of the West Property want the fire hydrant and bollards removed for safety 
reasons and to help increase the value of the West Property and surrounding properties.   

 
After exploring various alternative options to seeking the requested variance, Applicant 

concluded that the only possible option is to move the proposed Fire Suppression Room from the 



 3 

southwest corner to the green belt area located in the northwest corner of the Property, provided 
such relocation does not result in the Property becoming non-complaint due to the total green 
belt area falling below the minimum percentage required under the zoning code.  However, after 
completing its due diligence on this option, Applicant determined that it would be cost 
prohibitive to move the proposed Fire Suppression Room.  In order to move the Fire Suppression 
Room, this would require Applicant to incur the following costs: (i) money already paid for the 
prefabricated steel structure of the approved Fire Suppression Room; (ii) removal of the 
foundation, block and drain approved by a City of Troy inspector; (iii) extension of existing 
water main and modifications to current water main connection to the Chemical Storage 
Building; (iv) modifications to internal fire suppression piping in Chemical Storage Building to 
connect to new water main; and (v) construction of new Fire Suppression Room in the green belt 
area, including but not limited to, all design, material and labor costs for construction of same.  
The estimated total costs for such work is $125,000.00.    

 
As a result of the City’s approvals and subsequent actions, Applicant has no alternative 

but to request a variance to reduce the rear yard setback from 20 feet to 10.36 feet (variance of 
9.40 feet) to complete the construction of the Fire Suppression Room. (See attached 
Dimensional Plan of Property which reflects the 10.36 rear yard setback distance).  This 
variance is necessary to relieve the practical difficulty caused by the unique conditions and 
circumstances relating to the Property and approved use thereon as more particularly set forth 
below in the responses to the variance review standards. 

  
VARIANCE REVIEW STANDARDS 
 

a) Does the property have characteristics, such as narrowness, shallowness, 
irregular shape, topography, vegetation and other similar characteristics that make 
compliance with dimensional requirements substantially more difficult than would be the 
case for the great majority of properties in the same zoning district? 
 

Yes.  As with all variances, the principle review standard is whether the variance is 
needed to relieve a practical difficulty caused by the unique conditions present on the Property.  
In this case, the City, after approving Applicant’s fire suppression plans and construction of the 
footings/foundations to the Fire Suppression Room, has asserted that the Fire Suppression Room 
is non-complaint due to it not satisfying the 20 foot rear yard setback requirement.  As a result, 
special and unique conditions and circumstances have been created with respect to the Property 
that are not applicable to other buildings and property in the same district.  Applicant, unlike 
other land owners in the district, is charged with the practical difficulty of having to remedy 
these unique conditions and circumstances by moving the approved Fire Suppression Room from 
the southwest corner to the northwest corner of the Property at the estimated cost of $125,000.  
As referenced above, this alternative is only possible if the Property is able to maintain its 
minimum green belt after the relocation of the Fire Suppression Room. This practical difficulty 
may be relieved by approving the requested variance. 

    
From a practical standpoint, Applicant notes that the existing concrete pad and air purifier 

equipment located adjacent to the proposed Fire Suppression Room is located 10.36 feet from 
the rear lot line, which is the same distance as the approved constructed footings/foundation of 



 4 

the Fire Suppression Room. (See attached Dimensional Plan).  While this air purifier pad and 
equipment is not considered an addition or structure for which compliance with the City’s 
dimensional requirements is required, the size, purpose and function of these improvements are 
materially similar to the fire suppression equipment and Fire Suppression Room which is 
essential to the use and operation of the Chemical Storage Building. The air purifier pad and 
equipment has the same encroachment issues as the Fire Suppression Room, which are not 
material as further outlined below.  At minimum, it is disingenuous for the City to have 
originally approved Applicant’s fire suppression plans and to then assert that the Fire 
Suppression Room is non-complaint due to the rear setback requirement when, from a practical 
standpoint, the same issues exist and will remain as it relates to the existing air purifier pad and 
equipment.  

 
Also, after the City agreed that Applicant could connect its fire suppression system to the 

existing water main located on the West Property, and after the Applicant agreed to move the fire 
hydrant to the southwest corner of the Property, the City has now asserted that the Fire 
Suppression Room is non-complaint because it will be located in the water main easement area 
to be granted on the Property unless the City Engineering Department agrees to reduce the 
standard dimensions relating to water main easements. Based on its conversations with the City 
Engineering Department, Applicant understands that the City will approve a water main 
easement on the Property with reduced dimensions that will result in the Fire Suppression Room 
being located outside of any water main easement area.  Thus, this is not an issue that should 
preclude the approval of the requested variance. 

 
b) Are the characteristics which make compliance with dimensional 

requirements difficult related to the Property for which the variances are sought, not some 
other location? 
 

Yes.  The existing Chemical Storage Building and proposed Fire Suppression Room are 
located solely within the Property boundaries and is suitable for use as a chemical storage 
building with a state of the art foam fire suppression system.  The approved footings/foundation 
to the Fire Suppression Room is setback 10.36 feet from the rear lot line and a variance of 9.64 
feet is being requested.     

 
c) Are the characteristics which make compliance with dimensional 

requirements difficult of a personal nature?   
 
 No.   All such characteristics were caused by the City. 
 

d) Are the characteristics which make compliance with dimensional 
requirements difficult created by the current owner or a previous owner? 
 

No.  All such characteristics were caused by the City or special accommodations made to 
surrounding properties and owners. 

 



 5 

e) Will the proposed variance: 
 

(i)  be harmful or alter the essential character of the area in which the property 
is located? 
 
 No.   The surrounding properties are all manufacturing and industrial properties which 
have existed for years.  Applicant has been operating its business on the Property for over 55 
years and the construction of the Fire Suppression Room is simply the furtherance of its action 
plan with the City that was developed for purposes of improving the essential character of the 
area.   The Fire Suppression Room will not decrease the visibility of any surrounding property 
and such improvements will be blocked by the existing 6 foot high wooden fence surrounding 
the Property.  In fact, the improvements will improve the character of the area in that Applicant’s 
business will be operated in a safer manner, the fire hydrant and bollards located on the West 
Property will be removed and the retention/drain system has been reconstructed and connected to 
the North Property, all at the cost of Applicant.  These improvements have or will eliminate long 
standing health and safety issues within the area that will only improve the overall character of 
the area.   

 
(ii) impair an adequate supply of light and air to adjacent property?  

 
 No.  See response to e)(i) above.  In addition, the requested variance relates specifically 
to the rear of the Property which faces the parking lots and rear of adjacent properties.  The Fire 
Suppression Room will have no impact on the supply of light or air to adjacent properties.    

 
(iii) unreasonably increase the congestion in public streets?  
 
No.  The requested variance has no impact on the public streets. 
 
(iv) increase the danger of fire or endanger the public safety? 

 
 No.  The variance will help to significantly decrease the danger of fire or the 
endangerment of public safety.  The Fire Suppression Room is specifically designed to have the 
fire suppression equipment located outside of the Chemical Storage Building so that in the event 
of a fire due to Applicant’s flammable chemicals stored in the Chemical Storage Building, the 
fire suppression equipment will not be impacted by the fire and will work to put out any fire in a 
matter of minutes.  This is a state of the art foam fire suppression system that will prevent against 
the danger of fire and will dramatically improve Applicant’s current safety protections.  

 
(v) unreasonably diminish or impair established property value within the 

surrounding areas?  
 
No.  See response to e)(i) above.   
 



 6 

(vi)   in any other respect impair the public health, safety, comfort, morals or 
welfare of the inhabitants of the City?   
 

No.  See response to e)(i) above.  The City and Applicant engaged in an action plan that 
would help to improve the public health, safety and welfare of the inhabitants of the City and the 
construction of the Fire Suppression Room designed to service the existing Chemical Storage 
Building is a culmination of that action plan. 
 
 
 
 
8601192-1 







 
 
4453 Carleton-Rockwood Road  South Rockwood, MI  48179 
Phone:  (734) 777-8425 Fax:  (734) 789-8740 
 
 
 
 
September 22, 2012 
 
ND Industries 
Attn:  Joe Gutowski 
 
Re:  ND Industries Storage Warehouse 
         1893 Barrett Road 
         Troy, Michigan 
 
Lincoln Fire Protection submitted the plans for the above project to the City of Troy originally 
on May 16, 2012.  We started coordination with the fire department at that time.  Before the 
coordination was completed, the plans were somehow misplaced by the City. 
 
We were asked by the City of Troy to re-submit the plans for this project the first week of 
August, 2012.   Lincoln Fire Protection re-submitted and was notified on August 21, 2012 that 
the permit and plans were complete.  The permit was picked up on August 22, 2012. 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
 
 
Bill Hemphill, President 
lincolnfireprotection@yahoo.com 
 
 
 
 
 























From: Rick Kessler
To: jgutowski@ndindustries.com
Subject: variance
Date: Monday, September 17, 2012 5:52:32 PM

Hi Joe,
The addition on the back of the building is going to need a variance from the BZA (Board of Zoning
Appeals). A 20’ setback from the rear property is required. Applications are available on line. The
application has a cover sheet that outlines what has to be done. I am working on water main
easement issues; I will keep you posted. Call or email me if you have questions.














	VARIANCE REVIEW STANDARDS
	ZONING BOARD OF APPEALS PROCEDURE
	AGENDA - October 16, 2012
	1. ROLL CALL
	2. APPROVAL OF MINUTES
	September 18, 2012

	3. APPROVAL OF AGENDA
	4. HEARING OF CASES
	A. VARIANCE REQUEST, CARL GIORDANO FOR BOND BILT HOME IMPROVEMENT, 3333 PADDINGTON
	Locational Maps (3)
	Application (pgs 11-16)

	B. VARIANCE REQUEST, PASTOR SCOTT MORGAN FOR ZION CHRISTIAN CHURCH, 3668 LIVERNOIS
	Locational Maps (3)
	Application (pgs 21-27)
	ZBA October 18, 2011 Minutes

	C. VARIANCE REQUEST, SILVANA AND ZORAN INIC, 6285 ROCHESTER
	Locational Maps (3)
	Application (pgs 34-49)

	D. VARIANCE REQUEST, JIM BARDY FOR CONTINENTAL SERVICES, 700 STEPHENSON HWY
	Locational Maps (3)
	Application (pgs 54-68)
	ZBA March 20, 2012 Minutes Excerpt

	E. VARIANCE REQUEST, GARY ABITHEIRA, 1024 ARTHUR
	Locational Maps (3)
	Application (pgs 75-78)

	F. VARIANCE REQUEST, GARY ABITHEIRA, VACANT LOT NEXT TO AND WEST OF 85 CLOVERIDGE
	Locational Maps (3)
	Application (pgs 83-87)

	G. VARIANCE REQUEST, JOE GUTOWSKI FOR ND INDUSTRIES, 1893 BARRETT
	Locational Maps (3)
	Application (pgs 92-119)


	5. COMMUNICATIONS
	6. MISCELLANEOUS BUSINESS
	7. PUBLIC COMMENT
	8. ADJOURNMENT




